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STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF STATE
OFFI CE OF ADM NI STRATI VE HEARI NGS

___________________________________________ X

In the Matter of the Application of

HOWNARD BRODERSON DECI SI ON
For a License as a Real Estate Sal esperson
___________________________________________ X

The above noted matter canme on for hearing before the
under si gned, Roger Schneier, on Septenber 8, 1998 at the office of
the Departnent of State l|located at 270 Broadway, New York, New
Yor k.

The applicant was present and was represented by lan C
Daiter, Esq. of the Law O fice of Mchael lan Black, Esq., 342
Madi son Avenue, Suite 1002, New York, New York.

The Division of Licensing Services (hereinafter "DLS') was
represented by Legal Assistant Thomas Napi er ski .

| SSUE

The i ssue before the tribunal is whether the applicant should
be denied a license as a real estate sal esperson because of prior
crimnal convictions.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

1) By application dated March 3, 1998 the applicant applied
for a license as a real estate sal esperson, answering "yes" to
guestion nunber 6: "Have you ever been convicted of a crinme or
offense (not a mnor traffic violation) or has any license,
conmi ssion or registration ever been denied, suspended or revoked
in this state or el sewhere?" (State's Ex. 3).

2) On August 1, 1994 the applicant was found guilty after a
jury trial in United State District Court, Eastern District of New
York, of violating nmultiple counts of: 18 USC 1031, Major Fraud
Against The United States, a class C felony; 18 USC 1342, Wre
Fraud, a class D felony; and 18 USC 1001, Fal se Statenment, a cl ass
D fel ony, and was subsequently sentenced to a termof inprisonnment
of one year and a day (State's Ex. 4 and 5).

3) The crines arose out of the applicant's then enpl oynent as
Vice President of Business Operations of Gumman Aircraft
Engi neering Corporation (hereinafter "G unman"). |In the course of
the performance of his duties in that position the applicant was
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required to certify to the United States governnent that the cost
and pricing data used in a proposal which resulted in the granting
to Gunmman of a contract with the National Aeronautic and Space
Adm ni stration were current and accurate. Although subsequent to
submtting its proposal Gunman had obtained a | ower interest rate
on the financing of the equipnment that it was leasing to the

government than that which was stated in the proposal, the
applicant certified that the ol der, higher interest rate was still
in effect. The result was that G uman increased its profit by

approxi mat el y $1, 500, 000. 00.

3) At the tinme of the comm ssion of the crines the applicant
was approxi mately 50 years ol d.

4) The applicant was granted a Certificate of Relief From
Disabilities by the New York State Board of Parole on February 20,
1998 (State's Ex. 3).

5) By letter dated March 18, 1998 the applicant was advi sed by
DLS that it proposed to deny his application because of the
convictions, and that he could request an adm nistrative review,
whi ch he did on March 30, 1998. By letter dated April 22, 1998 the
applicant was advised by DLS that after review it continued to
propose to deny his application, and that he could request an
adm ni strative hearing, which he did by letter dated April 26
1998. He repeated that request in letters received by DLS on My
20, 1998 and June 22, 1998. Accordingly, the matter having been
referred to this tribunal on July 7, 1998, notice of hearing of the
sane date was served on the applicant by certified mail posted by
DLS on July 22, 1998 (State's Ex. 1 and 2).

6) The applicant was forced to resign fromhis enpl oyment with
G umman when it was disclosed that over a period of three years he
had submitted travel vouchers acconpanied by fraudul ent receipts
(State's Ex. 5).

CPI NI ON

|- As the person who requested the hearing, the burden is on
the applicant to prove, by substantial evidence, that he is
sufficiently trustworthy to be licensed as a real estate
sal esperson. Real Property Law (RPL) 8441[1-A][e]; State
Adm ni strative Procedure Act (SAPA), 8306(1). Substantial evidence
is that which a reasonable mnd could accept as supporting a
conclusion or ultimte fact. Gay v Adduci, 73 N.Y.2d 741, 536
N.Y.S.2d 40 (1988). "The question...is whether a conclusion or
ultimate fact may be extracted reasonably--probatively and
logically.” Gty of Utica Board of Water Supply v New York State
Health Departnment, 96 A D.2d 710, 465 N Y.S 2d 365, 366
(1983)(citations omtted).
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I1- 1In considering whether the |icense should be granted, it
IS necessary to consider together the provisions of RPL 8441 1-
Al[e], which require that he denonstrate that he possesses the
required trustworthiness, and the provisions of Correction |aw
Article 23-A See, Codelia v Departnent of State, No. 29114/91
(Suprenme Court, NY County, May 19, 1992).

Article 23-A of the Correction Law i nposes an obligation on
| i censi ng agenci es

"to deal equitably wth ex-offenders while also
protecting society's interest in assuring performance by
reliable and trustworthy persons. Thus, the statute sets
out a broad general rule that...public agencies cannot
deny...a license to an applicant solely based on status
as an ex-offender. But the statute recogni zes exceptions
either where there is a direct relationship between the
crimnal offense and the specific license...sought
(Correction Law 8752[1]), or where the license...would
involve an unreasonable risk to persons or property

(Correction Law 8752[2]). |If either exception applies,
the enployer (sic) has discretion to deny the
l[icense...." Matter of Bonacorsa, 71 N.Y.2d 605, 528

N.Y.S.2d 519, 522 (1988).

In exercising its discretion, the agency nust consider the
eight factors contained in Correction Law 8753[1].

"The interplay of the two exceptions and 8753[1] is
awkward, but to give full nmeaning to the provisions, as
we must, it is necessary to interpret 8753 differently
depending on whether the agency is seeking to deny a
| i cense. .. pursuant to t he di rect relationship
exception...or the unreasonable risk exception....
Undoubt edl y, when the...agency relies on the unreasonabl e
ri sk exception, the eight factors...shoul d be considered
and applied to determne if in fact an unreasonabl e risk
exists.... Having considered the eight factors and
determ ned that an unreasonable risk exists, however,
t he...agency need not go further and consider the same
factors to determ ne whether the license...should be
granted....8753 nust also be applied to the direct
rel ati onshi p exception...however, adifferent analysisis
requi red because 'direct relationship' is defined by
8750[ 3], and because consideration of the factors
contained in 8753[1] does not contribute to determ ning
whether a direct relationship exists. W read the
direction of 8753 that it be applied '(i)n making a
determ nation pursuant to section seven hundred fifty-
two' to nmean that, notw thstanding the existence of a
direct relationship, an agency...nust consider the
factors contained in 8753, to determ ne whether...a
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license should, in its discretion, issue." Bonacorsa
supra, 528 N.Y.S.2d at 523.

A direct relationship is one wherein the offense bears
directly on the applicant's ability or fitness to perform one or
nore of the duties or responsibilities necessarily related to the
license, Correction Law 8750[3]. There is no statutory definition
of "unreasonabl e risk” which "depends upon a subj ective anal ysi s of
a variety of considerations relating to the nature of the
license...and the prior m sconduct." Bonacorsa, supra, 528 N. Y. S. 2d
at 522.

"Adirect relationship can be found where the applicant's
prior conviction was for an offense related to the
i ndustry or occupation at issue (denial of a Iliquor
license warranted because the corporate applicant's
principal had a prior conviction for fraud in interstate
beer sales); (application for a license to operate a
truck in garnment district denied since one of the
corporate applicant's principals had been previously
convicted of extortion arising out of a garment truck
racket eering operation), or the elenents inherent in the
nature of the crim nal offense woul d have a direct inpact
on the applicant's ability to perform the duties
necessarily related to the |icense or enploynent sought
(application for employnment as a traffic enforcenent
agent deni ed; applicant had prior convictions for, inter
alia, assault in the second degree, possession of a
danger ous weapon, crim nal possessi on of stol en property,
and larceny)."” Marra v City of White Plains, 96 A D.2d
865 (1983) (citations omtted).

Wile the issuance of a Certificate O Relief From
Disabilities or of Good Conduct creates a presunption of
rehabilitation, as explained by the Court in Bonacorsa, that
presunption is only one factor to be considered along with the
eight factors set forth in Correction Law 8753[1] in determning
whet her there is an unreasonable risk or, if a determ nation has
already been nmade that there is a direct relationship, in the
exercise by the agency of its discretion. Hughes v Shaffer, 154
AD2d 467, 546 NYS2d 25 (1989).

"The presunption of rehabilitation which derives from..a
certificate of relief fromcivil disabilities, has the
same effect, however, whether the...agency seeks to deny
the application pursuant to the direct relationship
exception or the unreasonabl e ri sk exception. |In neither
case does the certificate establish a prima facie
entitlement to the |icense. It creates only a
presunpti on of rehabilitation, and al t hough
rehabilitationis an inportant factor to be consi dered by
t he agency...in determ ni ng whether the |license...should
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be granted (see 8753[1][g]), it is only one of the eight
factors to be consi dered."” Bonacorsa, supra, 528 NYS2d at
523.

A real estate salesperson acts as an agent on behalf of
various principals. The relationship of agent and principal is
fiduciary in nature, "...founded on trust or confidence reposed by
one person in the integrity and fidelity of another."™ Mbil QI
Corp. v Rubenfeld, 72 Msc.2d 392, 339 NYS2d 623, 632 (Cvil C.
Queens County, 1972). Included in the fundanmental duties of such
a fiduciary are good faith and undi vided loyalty, and full and fair
di scl osure. Such duties are inposed upon real estate |icensees by
Iicense | aw, rul es and regul ati ons, contract |aw, the principals of
the | aw of agency, and tort law. L.A. Gant Realty, Inc. v Cuono,
58 AD2d 251, 396 NYS2d 524 (1977). The object of these rigorous
standards of performance is to secure fidelity fromthe agent to
the principal and to insure the transaction of the business of the
agency to the best advantage of the principal. Departnent of State
v Short Term Housi ng, 31 DOS 90, conf'd. sub nom Short Ter m Housi ng
v Department of State, 176 AD 2d 619, 575 NyS2d 61 (1991);
Departnment of State v Goldstein, 7 DOS 87, conf'd. Sub nom
ol dstein v Departnent of State, 144 AD2d 463, 533 NYS2d 1002
(1988). In addition, real estate brokers and sal espersons have a
fundanmental duty to deal honestly with nenbers of the public other
than their principals. Dvision of Licensing Services v John
Linfoot, 60 DOS 88, conf'd. sub nom Harvey v Shaffer, 156 AD2d
1013, 549 NYS2d 296 (1989).

The applicant was convicted, after a jury trial, of crines
whi ch denonstrated a basic |ack of honesty and forthrightness.
Wiile he clains that there was no finding of a breach of trust
placed in himby the United States governnment, that claimis based
upon a technical interpretation of Federal |aw Clearly, he
deceived the government, and the governnment relied on his
decepti on. Thus, in light of the obligation for a real estate
sal esperson to act with the highest degree of honesty in his
dealings with both his principals and the general public, thereis
a direct relationship between the crines for which the applicant
was convicted and a license as a real estate sal esperson.

The direct relationship having been established, it 1is
necessary to consider the factors contained in Correction Law
8753[ 1] to determ ne whether the issuance to the applicant of a
license as a real estate sal esperson would involve an unreasonabl e
risk to the safety or welfare of specific individuals or the
general public.

The public policy of the state to encourage the |Iicensure and
enpl oynent of persons previously convicted of crimnal offenses
(8753[1][a]), which is to the benefit of the applicant, is
counterbal anced by the legitinate interest of the Division of
Li censing Services in the protection of the safety and welfare of
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t hose persons who avail thensel ves of the services of its |licensees
(88753[1][b] and [h]).

As previously noted, the direct relationship of the crines to
the duties of a real estate sal esperson is a factor which weighs
agai nst the issuance of the license (8753[1][c]), as does the fact
that the crines, being felonies, were serious offenses
(8753[1][f])). A further negative factor is the fact that the
applicant was approximately 50 years old at the tine that he
commtted the crimes (8753[1][e], and, thus, of sufficient maturity
to recogni ze the seriousness and w ongful ness of his conduct.

The fact that approximately 9 years have passed since the
comm ssion of the crimes (8753[1][d]) is in the applicant's favor,
as are his enploynment since his release fromprison (App. Ex. O
and his conpliance with the ternms of his supervised rel ease (App
Ex. B) (8753[1][g]), and the issuance to himof a Certificate of
Relief FromDi sabilities (8753[2]).

The wei ghing of the factors is not a nechanical function and
cannot be done by sone nmat hematical fornula. Rather, as the Court
of Appeals said in Bonacorsa, it nust be done through the exercise
of discretion to determ ne whether the direct relationship between
t he "convictions and the |icense has been attenuated sufficiently.”
Bonacorsa, supra, 528 NYS2d at 524.

The crimes of which the applicant was convicted are serious.
They invol ved extrene acts of dishonesty. His contention that he
derived no personal benefit from his crinmes, while perhaps
literally true, is msleading. As with any enpl oyee, the applicant
nmust have anticipated that if Gunmman did particularly well on the
contract it mght reflect well on himand in sonme way further his
career, just as a dishonest real estate sal esperson m ght concl ude
that by m sl eading custoners he could benefit his clients and/or
enpl oyi ng broker and in so doing reap future benefits. Thus, when
t he conduct which led to his conviction is considered together with
the fact that the applicant was forced to resign from his
enpl oyment with G umman when it was di scl osed that over a period of
three years he had submtted travel vouchers acconpanied by
fraudul ent receipts, the tribunal can only conclude that to grant
this application would be in derogation of its obligation to
protect the public fromuntrustworthy |icensees.

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

After having given due consideration to the factors set forth
in Correction Law 8753, and having weighed the rights of the
appl i cant against the rights and interests of the general public,
it is concluded that the applicant has not denonstrated that he has
the requisite good character, integrity and trustworthiness to be
Iicensed as a real estate sal esperson, and has not established that
the direct relationship between his conviction and a |license as a



-7-

real estate sal esperson has been attenuated sufficiently. Thus, it
is further concluded that the issuance to himof a license as a
real estate sal esperson would involve an unreasonable risk to the
safety and wel fare of the public.

DETERM NATI ON

WHEREFORE, | T |S HEREBY DETERM NED THAT the application of
Howard Broderson for a license as a real estate sal esperson is
deni ed.

Roger Schnei er
Adm ni strative Law Judge

Dat ed: COctober 30, 1998



